

5 Special Provisions to the OSS General Conditions

ORGANIZATION OF CONDITIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS

The 2021 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction ~~General Conditions Volume I (also referred to as (OSS) form the “OSS Volume I General Conditions”). The numbering system is intended to match basis for the numbering system in the OSS Volume I General Conditions. The OSS Volume I General Conditions apply as amended by these~~ Conditions and Specifications for this project.

https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Business/Specs/2021_STANDARD_SPECIFICATIONS.pdf

The City of Bend Special Provisions. Any to the OSS Volume I General Conditions not amended by these modifies the 2021 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction, (General Conditions).

Special Provisions ~~applies directly without modification. Definitions and abbreviations in to~~ the OSS ~~Volume I~~ General Conditions

GENERAL CONDITIONS

~~apply to these~~ Special Provisions, ~~except~~ to the ~~extent modified by the~~ 2021 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction (OSS) General Conditions

- 00110 – Organization, Conventions, Abbreviations and Definitions
- 00120 – Bidding Requirements and Procedures
- 00130 – Award and Execution of Contract
- 00140 – Scope of Work
- 00150 – Control of Work
- 00160 – Source of Materials
- 00165 – Quality of Materials
- 00170 – Legal Relations and Responsibilities
- 00180 – Prosecution and Progress
- 00190 – Measurement of Pay Quantities
- 00195 – Payment
- 00197 – Force Account Work
- 00199 – Disagreements, Protests and Claims

SP00100 (Special Provisions for the 2021 Book) (Last updated: January 2022)

PART 00100 – GENERAL CONDITIONS

(Follow all instructions and make all edits with “Track Changes” turned on. If there are no instructions [orange text] above a subsection, paragraph, sentence, or bullet, then include it in the project. Delete all orange text before preparing the final document.)

Section 00110 – Organization, Conventions, Abbreviations and Definitions

Comply with Section 00100 of the ~~General Conditions~~Standard Specifications modified as follows:

00110.10 Abbreviations – ~~The~~Add the following ~~abbreviation applies in addition to the abbreviations defined in the Standard Conditions.~~

~~—~~NFPA - National Fire Protection Association
~~—~~OSS – 2021 Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction
UIC – Underground Injection Control
WPCF - Water Pollution Control Facility

00110.20 Definitions ~~– City The following definitions are in addition to or modify the definitions in the Standard Conditions.~~ Modify as follows:

As Approved ~~–~~Add the following:

The words “as approved”, unless otherwise qualified, shall be understood to be followed by the words “by the City”.

Agency – ~~The City.~~Replace with the following

~~City~~—The City of Bend

City – Add the following:

The City of Bend, Oregon, including its duly authorized representatives. The City is described as the Agency in the OSS documents.

~~**Developer** – A private entity who has expressed the intention of providing, or who has undertaken the providing, of some facility, structure, or like project to be accepted for maintenance and ownership by the City.~~

City Project Representative – Add the following:

The authorized representative of the City, with primary responsibility for administering the Public Improvement Contract

Contract Documents – Delete in its entirety. Contract Documents are as defined in the CITY OF BEND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT.

Design - perform architectural or engineering, or both, design professional services, including but not limited to planning, designing, observing, consulting, evaluating and other related services, for the construction of the Work.

Engineer – ~~The City~~ Replace with the following:

The City's project manager if the individual is registered as a professional engineer in the State of Oregon. If the City's project manager is not a professional engineer, the Engineer is the Engineering and Infrastructure Planning Department (EIPD) Director. In both cases, the City's project manager and EIPD Director may designate the Engineer.

Furnish - supply and deliver services, materials, or ~~designee~~ equipment to the Work site (or other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.

Install - put into use or place in final position services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.

Laboratory - Add the following:

Any laboratory used or approved by the City. This may or may not be the same testing laboratory as designated in the OSS.

Legal Holiday – Add the following:

The following, subject to subsequent change by law, are legal holidays for the City /Agency: Sunday, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving and the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas, and those days declared as holidays by the City. When a legal holiday other than Sunday falls on a Saturday, the Friday proceeding Saturday is a legal holiday. When a legal holiday falls on Sunday, the immediate following Monday is a legal holiday. ~~This listing replaces the OSS designations.~~

~~(The following expands and replaces~~ Other references to Legal Holidays in the OSS 00100.20 will comply with the modified definition of "Legal Holiday". Such as in Section 00170.65, 00180.41, 00220.60 and 00290.32.

Work on Saturdays, Sundays, and City's legal holidays will not be permitted unless written approval is granted by the City.

Perform or provide – when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.

Plans – ~~)~~ Delete and replace with the following:

Plans – ~~The following is in addition to the OSS definition of Plans.~~ The term "Plans" refers to the official plans, profiles, cross-sections, elevations, details, and other working drawings and supplementary drawings, or reproductions thereof, signed by the Engineer, duly licensed design professional (Professional Engineer, Architect, or Landscape Architect), that show the location, character, dimensions and details for the work to be performed. Plans may either be bound in the same book as the balance of the Contract Documents, or bound in separate sets, and are a part of the Contract

Documents regardless of the method of binding. Plans are Standard and Supplemental Drawings, and approved ~~unstamped~~Unstamped and reviewed ~~stamped and accepted~~Stamped Working Drawings (see 00150.40 ~~and~~ 00150.35 in the ~~OSS~~Special Provisions).

~~**Standard Conditions** – Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction, Volume 1 (General Conditions).~~

Quality Control Personnel – Add the following:

In addition to the ODOT technical certifications listed throughout the OSS, the following certifications are approved alternatives:

- ACI Concrete Field Testing Technician – Grade 1
- ACI Concrete Strength Testing Technician
- ICC Reinforced Concrete Special Inspector
- ICC Soils Special Inspector
- WAQTC certifications

Addition certifications may be submitted and approved on a case-by-case basis.

Working Day – Add the following:

The City working day is any and every calendar day excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays. Unless otherwise permitted, a working day occurs between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:30 p.m.

End of Section

Section 00120 – Bidding Requirements and Procedures

~~The only portion of General Conditions Section 00120 that applies is Section 00120.17. All other subsection of Section 00120 are deleted. The following additional section 00120.14 is added:~~

~~00120.14 Verification of Data –~~

~~Contractor has inspected all work sites and has carefully reviewed the plans and specification and understands the nature and location of the work; the conformation of the grounds; the character, quality, and quantities needed preliminary to and during the prosecution of the work; the general and local conditions; and all other matters which can in any way affect the work. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the City, either before or after the execution of this Agreement, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations of the Contract Documents.~~

~~Comply with Section 00120 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows:~~

Section 00120 – Bidding Requirements and Procedures. Delete in its entirety

Bidding Requirements are stated in the Bid/Contract Documents.

End of Section

Section 00130 – Award and Execution of Contract

Comply with Section 00130 of the ~~General Conditions is deleted.~~ Standard Specifications modified as follows:

Section 00130 Award and Execution of Contract - Delete in its entirety

End of Section

Section 00140 – Scope of Work

Comply with Section 00140 of the General Conditions Standard Specifications modified as follows:

~~(The following bullets are an addition to OSS 00140.00.)~~

00140.00 Purpose of the Contract – Add the following bullets

- ~~Additional copies of~~ Contract Documents or Plans may be obtained upon request by paying the actual cost of reproducing the Contract Documents or Plans.
- Nothing in the Agreement shall be construed as vesting in the Contractor any right to the property or in the material used after acceptance by the City. All materials shall become the property of the City upon being accepted.
- City shall furnish, as indicated in the Contract Documents ~~and not later than the date when needed by Contractor~~, the lands upon which the Work is to be ~~done~~ performed, access rights-of-way, and other lands that are designated for the use of Contractor. Easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities will be obtained and paid for by the City, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents. ~~If Contractor believes that any delay in City furnishing these lands or easements entitles him/her to an extension of the Contract Time, he may make claim thereof.~~ The Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.
- The Contractor shall confine its equipment, the storage of materials, and the operation of its workmen to limits shown on the plans or indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or directions of the Engineer, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with its materials.

Add the following subsection:

00140.05 Cleaning and Site Maintenance - The Contractor shall, at all times, at its own expense and without further order, keep property on which work is in progress free from accumulations of waste material or rubbish caused by employees or by the Work, and at all times during the construction period shall maintain structure sites, rights-of-way, adjacent property, and the surfaces of streets and roads on which work is being done in a safe condition for the Contractor's workers and the public. Accumulation of waste materials that might constitute a fire hazard will not be permitted. Spillage from the Contractor's hauling vehicles on public or private roads and parking areas shall be promptly cleaned up. Upon completion of the construction, the Contractor shall, at its own expense, remove all temporary structures, rubbish, and waste materials resulting from its operations.

Contractor shall keep the designated work site clear of noxious weeds and free of fire danger related to landscape material the enter length of the project.

Upon Contractor's failure ~~of the Contractor~~ to provide cleanup within 24 hours of ~~being directed in writing~~ receiving written direction to do so ~~by the Engineer~~, the City, ~~or an agent~~

~~retained by the City,~~ may complete the cleanup by whatever means necessary, and the cost thereof, plus 10 percent for handling, shall be deducted from any payment due the Contractor. Should such amount exceed available funds, City may pursue compensation via a claim. Any such claim shall be in addition to liquidated damages.

Add the following subsection:

00140.06 Cutting and Patching - The Contractor shall ~~deprovide~~ all cutting, fitting, or patching of its work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly, and fit it to receive or be received by work of other contractors shown by the Plans.

Add the following subsection:

00140.07 Functional and Performance Testing - Operating equipment and systems shall be ~~functional-tested and~~ performance-tested in the presence of the Engineer to demonstrate compliance with the specified requirements. Performance testing shall be conducted under the specified design ~~operation~~operating conditions or under simulated operating conditions recommended or approved by the Engineer. ~~The~~Unless timing is otherwise specified, testing shall be scheduled with the Engineer at least 1 week in advance of the planned date for testing and include a factory representative on site. Contractor shall provide written testing plans and all test results to City.

~~*(Use the following subsection .60 when the Contractor may be required to do Extra Work items. Listed items are not to be biddable work items. Delete the example and insert work required.)*~~

00140.60 Extra Work—Add the following ~~to the end of this~~ subsection:

00140.35 Subsurface and Physical Conditions - Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the general accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. Except for such reliance on such "technical data," Contractor may not rely upon or make any Claim against Agency, Engineer, or any of Engineer's Consultants with respect to the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

Engineer's Review: After receipt of written notice as required, Engineer will promptly review the pertinent condition, determine the necessity of Agency's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect thereto, and advise Agency in writing (with a copy to Contractor) of Engineer's findings and conclusions. The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the following: such condition must meet any one or more of the categories with respect to Work that is paid for on a Unit Price Basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions stated in the General Conditions.

Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if the Contractor knew of the existence of such conditions at the time Contractor made a final commitment to Agency in respect of Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract; or if the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such final commitment; or if the Contractor failed to give the written notice within the time and as required by the General Conditions.

If Engineer concludes that a change in the Contract Documents is required, a Work Change Directive or a Change Order will be issued to reflect and document such consequences. An equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, to the extent that they are attributable to the existence or location of any Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents and that Contractor did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated. If Agency and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, Agency or Contractor may make a Claim therefore as provided in the General Conditions.

End of Section

Section 00150 – Control of Work

Comply with Section 00150 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows:

(Consider if project would benefit from a Partnering arrangement and consider if this should be specified into the contract vs. offered informally after award. City has had experience with formal partnering, however, good value with low investment of time can be obtained in informal setting with a couple of the project management staff and the Contractor's leadership to discuss project challenges, concerns, solutions, etc.)

00150.05 Cooperative Arrangement - Delete in its entirety.

00150.10 Coordination of Contract Documents - Delete subparagraph (a) in its entirety. Coordination of Specifications and Plans (Order of Precedence) is stated in the Bid/contact Documents.

Add the following subsection:

00150.11 General Requirements for Sequence and Scheduling of Work -

- *(Use the following subsections (a) through (h) to define the general requirements for sequencing and scheduling of work. Add, delete, or replace subsections as necessary to define the requirements of the work.)*
- *(Optional clause. Project Segments could be a useful way to divide linear projects with discrete constraints, or where work in one area must be complete prior to work in other areas. Item (a) only identifies the segments, and subsequent subsections describe how the work is constrained within the segments)*

(a) Project Segments – The Project is divided into segments with the following limits:

- *(Add project segments)*
- *(Optional clause. **Construction limits** could include **items** that may be like requirements for franchise utility work, special timing or sequence constraints)*

(b) Construction Limits – The Contractor shall limit active construction areas as described below:

(1) The following constraints are applicable to all Segments.

- *(Add construction constraints)*

(2) Segment 1

- *(Add construction constraints)*

(3) Segment 2

- (Add construction constraints)

(c) Temporary Pumping Plan – Temporary pumping plans are required as Extra Work to complete for the Project following existing sewers:

- (Add temporary pumping plan)

(d) Gravity Sewers

(1) Existing Facilities – Existing gravity sewer facilities affected by construction shall remain operation at all times. Contractor shall plan and that are sequence all construction activities and provide all means and methods to maintain continuous operation of the existing gravity sewer facilities. The Contractor shall maintain continuous service to all customers connected to existing sewer facilities affected by construction and sequence the work to maintain uninterrupted service.

(2) New Facilities - (Add gravity sewer requirements)

(e) Temporary Water Service – (Add temporary water service requirements)

(f) Utilities – Contractor shall sequence all work activities with known utility conflicts and any unanticipated utility conflicts that are encountered during construction. The Contractor shall modify the schedule and sequencing for all work items including, but not covered by the Special Provisions or listed Pay Items limited to: traffic control, temporary utility re-routing and support, private residence access, maintenance of utility service to customers, and construction of the proposed improvements, as necessary to coordinate with existing and relocated utilities.

Contractor shall sequence and schedule the work to maintain the function of all utilities during construction and make accommodations as necessary to allow utilities to maintain services to all customers served by the affected utilities.

Contractor shall coordinate with utilities where relocation or modification of utilities is to be performed by the utility company during Contractor's work in the vicinity.

(g) Protection of Work – It is the Contractor's responsibility to adequately protect and barricade all elements of the work from potential accidents or injury to the public at all times during both working hours and shutdown periods such as overnights, weekends, and holidays.

(h) Landscape Restoration – (Add landscape restoration requirements)

(Optional clause. In some circumstances it may be appropriate to restrict blasting. The following clause **may** be used to do this. Note, other construction techniques can still cause significant vibration and could have higher risk of damage than allowing controlled blasting. Engineer of Record should carefully consider appropriate use of this clause.)

- (i) **Nonblasting Areas** – Drawings may depict areas where nonblasting excavations methods may be required. Contractor shall comply with all such nonblasting requirements.

Specific nonblasting areas include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: station locations: A purpose for the nonblasting requirement is noted in parenthesis next to the station location(s):

- ~~• Example: Class 3 Preparation for bridge deck resurfacing~~

~~*(Add the following bullet to OSS 00150.02 Inspector's Authority and Duties as an additional authorized activity of the Inspector.)*~~

~~**00150.02 Inspectors Authority and Duties –**~~

- ~~• Reject defective material and suspend any work that is being improperly done, subject to the final decision of the Engineer.~~

~~**Sections 00150.05 and 00150.10 are deleted.**~~

EXAMPLE STA X+XX to Y+YY	(gas)
EXAMPLE STA X+XX to Y+YY	(water main)

~~*(Include (i) when special utility potholes are identified in the plans and included in SP00498. Add time requirements for special utility potholes.)*~~

~~**(i) Special Utility Potholes – (Add special utility pothole time requirements)**~~

Add the following subsection:

00150.12 General Requirements for Work Areas - (Add general work area requirements. This may include clause related to work within easements, protection of structures, property access for third parties adjacent to work areas, and other requirements.)

(See Section 00305 and the ODOT Survey Policy and Procedure manual (https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/ETA/Documents_Geometronics/Survey-Policy-Procedure-Manual.pdf). The specifier must review 305 and understand the duties of City and Contractor with respect to surveying.)

00150.15 Construction Stakes, Lines and Grades - Delete and replace this section as follows:

Contractor shall perform all project surveying. See Section 00305.

Add

~~**00150.14 Construction Staking**~~ – All survey work shall be conducted by or under the supervision of a Registered Professional Land Surveyor or Professional Engineer,

~~licensed in the State of Oregon. The Contractor will be responsible for providing all construction staking as required to complete the Work.~~

- ~~(a.) **Stakes** – Construction stakes and stakes that are reference points for construction work shall be conspicuously marked. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to inform its employees and its Subcontractors of their importance and the necessity for their preservation.~~
- ~~1. The Contractor shall provide vertical and horizontal construction staking in proximity of the Work.~~
 - ~~2. Construction staking shall be provided at 50-foot intervals on tangent and 25-foot intervals on curves.~~

~~The guard stakes should contain the following information subsection:~~

- ~~• Engineer's station (on back)~~
- ~~• Offset from line (underlined)~~
- ~~• Offset from control point (circled)~~
- ~~• Cut or fill to grade~~
- ~~• Distance right or left from centerline on curb stakes (on back)~~

- ~~(b.) **Flagging Code** – A color code may be established during the course of the project indicating specific colors for the various kinds of stakes to be set.~~

- ~~(c.) **Sewer** – Both gravity and pressure sewer lines shall be construction staked by means of an offset line with pipe invert cut information provided.~~

- ~~1. Finish grades shall be provided as required.~~
- ~~2. Manholes shall have two reference points (swing-ties) indicating the center of the manhole, flow invert elevation, and finish grade. Upon the completion of sub-grade, the top of the manhole shall be staked with the finish grade and elevation by means of four offset stakes in a cross pattern so that the street slope and cross slope will be matched perfectly.~~
- ~~3. Services shall be staked as required by the Engineer.~~

- ~~(d.) **Water** – Waterlines shall be staked by means of an offset line at the appropriate intervals.~~

- ~~1. Fire hydrants shall have two reference points (swing-ties) indicating the center of the fire hydrants. Finish grades shall be provided as required.~~
- ~~2. Services shall be staked as required by the Engineer.~~

~~**Street** – Prior to commencing construction, clearing limits shall be established.~~

- ~~1. Where a significant (greater than 3-foot) cut or fill is required for sub grade, slope stakes and construction staking for sub grade will be provided.~~
- ~~2. Curb line shall be staked by means of an offset line no more than 6 feet offset from the face of curb, showing the cut or fill to the finish work. Said stakes shall be protected and saved for a period of 5 working days after construction of curbs to enable the Inspector to approve the alignment and grade. In addition to the above staking requirements, catch basins, points of curvature and tangency, and ends of curb radii shall be provided with a curb stake.~~

~~3. Base rock shall be staked by painting an appropriate target on the curb and providing construction stakes (blue tops) on centerline. On streets of 48 feet or greater width, blue tops will also be required at the quarter points. Blue tops will also be provided at the gutter line for the centerline and gutter lines of any intersecting street.~~

~~(e.) **Structures** - All structures shall be staked to the line and grade as shown on the plans or as directed by the Engineer.~~

~~**(Replace OSS 00150.15 with the following.)**~~

~~**(a) General** – The Contractor will perform no work until the Engineer inspects and approves stakes, lines, and grades laid out by the Contractor.~~

~~**(b) Agency Responsibilities** – The Engineer will:~~

- ~~• Inspect Contractor's established lines, grades, Slopes, Cross Sections, and curve super elevations for roadwork.~~

~~**(c) Contractor Responsibilities** – The Contractor shall:~~

- ~~• Lay out and set construction stakes and marks to establish the lines, grades, Slopes, Cross Sections, and curve super elevations for roadwork.~~
- ~~• Provide a set of construction stakes for line and grade for each phase of the Work.~~
- ~~• Set benchmarks and stakes for centerline of Bridges and bents.~~
- ~~• Calculate and provide finish deck grades.~~
- ~~• Inform the Engineer when stakes are available for inspection.~~
- ~~Coordinate construction to provide sufficient area for performing surveying work efficiently and safely.~~
- ~~• **Perform** work in a manner as to preserve stakes and marks.~~
- ~~• Set any reference lines for automatic control from the control stakes.~~

00150.19 Site Visits and Inspection – Engineer and/or Inspector will make periodic visits to the site to observe the progress and quality of the executed Work and to determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. They will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous onsite inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Their efforts are directed toward providing assurance for the City that the completed project will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents. On the basis of their onsite observations ~~as an experienced and qualified design professional~~, they will keep City informed on the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard City against defects and deficiencies in the work of Contractors.

~~**(Include the following sentence for Private Development Projects)**~~

Contractor shall schedule daily inspections through City View Portal for Private Development projects and or work shall be “STOPPED” by direction of the City Engineer.

Add the following subsection:

00150.26 Right to Retain Imperfect Work - If any work done or material furnished under this Agreement shall prove defective and not in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, and if the imperfection is not ~~be~~ of sufficient magnitude or importance to make the work dangerous or undesirable, or if the removal of the work will create conditions that are dangerous or undesirable, the City shall have the right and authority to retain the defective work and adjust the amount to be paid for the imperfect work. This section is intended to be complementary to, and does not alter or supersede, rights and responsibilities described in other sections of this Agreement, including 00170.80.

Add the following subsection:

00150.27 Use of Completed Portions - The City shall have the right to take possession of and use any completed or partially completed portions of the Work, notwithstanding the time for completing the entire Work or such portions that may not have expired. Such taking possession and use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work not completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. ~~If the use increases the cost of the Work, or delays the completion of the Work, the Contractor may be entitled to extra compensation or an extension of time, or both and may submit a written claim for additional compensation or extension of time to the Engineer. The Engineer will review the claim and determine its validity.~~

Add the following subsection:

00150.34 Schedule of Working Drawings and Sample Submittals - Prepare and submit a schedule of all specified Working Drawings and Sample Submittals identifying Specification Section number, anticipated submittal date, proposed title of submittal, location or facility to which submittal applies, and subcontractor or supplier (if other than Contractor) that is responsible for preparing submittal for Contractor, and earliest date (per contractor's critical path schedule) by which products or materials that are subject of Working Drawings or Samples are required on-site for incorporation in the work.

00150.35 Plans, 3D Engineered Models, Working Drawings, and 3D Construction Models – Delete and replace this subsection as follows:

Contractor shall submit Working Drawings to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted schedule of Working Drawings and Sample submittals. All submittals will be identified as Engineer may require and in the number of copies specified in the General Requirements. The data shown on the Working Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide and to enable Engineer to review the information. The Agency will provide a web-based tool for handling submittals, Working Drawings, requests for information, and other communications. Contractor shall use this tool for communication on the project to maximum extent practicable.

Contractor shall also submit Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted schedule of Working Drawings and Sample submittals. Each Sample will be identified clearly as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, and the use for which intended and otherwise as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the submittal. The numbers of each Sample to be submitted will be as specified in the Specifications.

Where a Working Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the schedule of Working Drawings and Sample submittals accepted by Engineer as required, any related Work performed prior to Engineer 's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

Before submitting each Working Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have determined and verified: all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information with respect thereto; all materials with respect to intended use, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; all information relative to means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; and Contractor shall also have reviewed and coordinated each Working Drawing or Sample with other Working Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents.

Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written indication that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review and approval of that submittal.

At ~~(Replace OSS 00150.35(c) with the following.)~~

~~(c)~~ the time of each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of such variations, if any, that the Working Drawing or Sample submitted may have varied from the requirements of the Contract Documents, such notice to be in a written communication separate from the submittal; and, in addition, shall cause a specific notation to be made on each Working Drawing and Sample submitted to Engineer for review and approval of each such variation.

Engineer will timely review and approve Working Drawings and Samples in accordance with the schedule of Working Drawings and Sample submittals accepted by ENGINEER. Engineer's review and approval will be only to determine if the items covered by the submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, conform to the information given in the Contract Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.

Engineer 's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction (except where a particular means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is specifically and expressly called for by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.

Engineer's review and approval of Working Drawings or Samples shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has in writing called Engineer's attention to each such variation at the time of each submittal as required and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Working Drawing or Sample approval; nor will any approval by Engineer relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements.

Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Working Drawings and submit as required new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.

(a) Plans - The Agency-prepared Plans will show details of lines, grades, Cross Sections, and Typical Section of the Roadway, and locations and design details of Structures.

(b) Working Drawings - The Contractor shall supplement the Agency-prepared Plans with stamped Working Drawings, or unstamped Working Drawings that show all information necessary to complete the Work. The applicable Section or Subsection of the Standard Specifications will indicate the supplemental information required and whether the drawings are to be stamped or unstamped. Stamped Working Drawings, unstamped Working Drawings, are defined as follows:

(1) Stamped Working Drawings - Working Drawings, calculations, and other data which are prepared by or under the direction of a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Oregon, and which bear the engineer's signature, seal, and expiration date.

(2) Unstamped Working Drawings - Working Drawings, calculations, and other data that do not bear an engineering seal.

(3) 3D Construction Models – (not used)

~~(a)(c)~~ **Number and Size and Format of Working Drawings** - - The Contractor shall submit Working Drawings according to one of the following methods:

~~(1) Paper Submittal - For paper submissions, submit seven copies of Working Drawings for steel Structures and six copies of Working Drawings for other Structures to the Engineer. The submitted copies shall be clear and readable. Drawing dimensions shall be 8-1/2 inches by 11 inches, 11 inches by 17 inches, or 22 inches by 34 inches in size. One copy of the submitted Working Drawings will be returned to the Contractor after processing. The Contractor shall submit up to four additional copies to the Engineer for processing that the Contractor would like to have returned.~~

~~(2) Electronic Submittal - (If specified as allowed in the Contract) For electronic submissions, submit Working Drawings according to the "Guide to Electronic Shop Drawing Submittal", which is available from the Engineer.~~

~~*(Replace OSS 00150.35(d)(1) and 00150.35(d)(2) with the following-)*~~

(1) Paper Submittal – not permitted. If Special Provisions refer to paper submittals, Contractor shall substitute PDF, or other electronic media as directed by Engineer to satisfactorily depict the requirements of the submittal.

(2) Electronic Submittal - The Contractor shall submit electronic Working Drawings as required in 00170.08 and submit via electronic Project Document Tracking System Software.

~~(b)(d)~~ (d) ~~(e)~~ **Processing Working Drawings** – The Engineer will process Working Drawings ~~and include comments on them~~ as follows:

(1) ~~(1)~~ Stamped Working Drawings – - Stamped Working Drawings will be designated as "reviewed" ~~or "~~, "reviewed with comments", by the Engineer. If stamped Working Drawings are "reviewed with comments" ~~by the Engineer.~~, the Contractor shall address all comments and resubmit the stamped Working Drawings.

(2) ~~(2)~~ Unstamped Working Drawings – - Unstamped Working Drawings will be designated ~~on the face of the Drawing~~ as "approved", "approved as noted", or "returned for correction" by the Engineer. If unstamped Working Drawings are returned for correction by the Engineer, the Contractor shall address all comments and resubmit the unstamped Working Drawings.

~~*(The following bullet is an addition to OSS 00150.40-)*~~

(3) 3D Construction Models – not used.

The Contractor shall not fabricate or construct any structural components until the stamped or unstamped Working Drawings are returned by the Engineer with a written designation of "accepted", "accepted with comments", "approved", or "approved as noted", as applicable for the Working Drawings.

The Engineer's processing of the Working Drawings does not amend any contractual obligations of the parties.

The Engineer will process and return Working Drawings within 21 Calendar Days (65 Calendar Days if Railroad approval is required) after receipt by the Engineer. If the Engineer fails to return such drawings or models within this period of time, the Engineer will consider granting a Contract Time extension according to 00180.80. If the Contractor is required to resubmit Working Drawings to the Engineer, the Engineer will process and return the Working Drawings within 21 Calendar Days (65 Calendar Days if Railroad approval is required) after receipt of the resubmitted Working Drawings by the Engineer.

00150.40 Cooperation and Superintendence by the Contractor- Add the following bullet after the fourth bullet within this section:

(a) General – The Contractor shall:

- Maintain on the job site, and make available to the Engineer upon request, one current marked-up set of the Design Drawings that accurately indicate all approved variations in the completed Work that differ from the original design information shown on the Drawings.

Add the following bullet after the final bullet in this section:

- Contractor shall reasonably provide access for City staff and City representatives to City facilities and the Work at all times, shall not unreasonably restrict access upon request.

Add the following subsection:

00150.41 Construction Management Forms and Communication

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT MANAGEMENT DOCUMENTATION

This item covers all project management and documentation efforts.

Project Document Tracking System Software:

All correspondence, including but not limited to meeting minutes, DCVRs, Field orders, Work Change Directives, Contract Modifications, Submittals, manufacturer's catalog cuts and materials information, data sheets, and similar required informational or documentary submittals, shall be provided in either 8-1/2 inch by 11 inch or 11 inch by 17 inch PDF format, and shall be provided to the Engineer and Agency's Representative electronically using the City's project management application software rather than in paper form. All documents referencing financial requirements can be processed through the City's project document tracking system. The Software and Training shall be paid for by the Agency.

The following forms shall be used to administer the Work.

Construction forms:

(a) Design Clarification Verification Request (DCVR)

This form is to be used to ask questions as to the design intent or make clarification of the design by the Contractor. This form can also be used by the Engineer to clarify the design intent.

When using EADOC (See 000170.08), the EADOC DCVR tab will substitute for this Transmittal Form.

(b) Work Change Directive (WCD)

It is understood that this work change directive will not change the contract price or schedule, but is evidence that the parties expect a change order to be subsequently issued reflecting any changes.

(c) Field Order

The intent of this Field Order is to authorize minor variations to the contract documents not involving a change in contract price or contract schedule and which are compatible with the design concept of the completed project. This Field Order is binding upon Agency and upon Contractor who will perform the work promptly. If Agency or Contractor believes an adjustment to the contract price or contract schedule is necessary, the party may make a claim therefore in accordance with the general conditions.

(d) Removal From Service (RFS) Request Form

This form shall be used for requesting and documenting significant operations interruptions or requests from the Contractor to make modifications to existing infrastructure that is in operation typically

(e) Request for Quotation

Requests contractor's proposal of cost and times to perform Agency's contemplated changes in the work.

Formally issued by the Agency; may be prepared by the engineer as the agent of the City of Bend.

NOT to be utilized for authorization to proceed with the change. Scope of work must be complete with all sketches, specifications, etc. required for contractor to estimate fully the work required. Lower portion of form to be completed and returned by contractor.

(f) Substitution Request: See section 00180.31(b)

This form shall be used for requesting substitutions to the specified products. All requests shall provide data which includes product description, specifications, drawings, photographs, performance and test adequate for evaluation of the request. Applicable portions of the data shall clearly identified.

(g) Submittal Transmittal Form

This form shall be used for submitting Construction submittal information, Project submittal according to the project specification and for submittal tracking purposes.

When using EADOC (See 00170.08), the EADOC submittal tab will substitute for this Transmittal Form.

(Use the following subsection .50(f) when listing utility information.)

Add the following subsection:

00150.50 Cooperation with Utilities—

(Add the following subsections.)

(f) Utility Information:

(Use the following paragraph when no anticipated utility conflicts exist.)

There are no anticipated conflicts with the Utilities listed below. Contact those Utilities having buried facilities and request that they locate and mark them for protection prior to construction.

Utility	Contact Person's <u>Person's</u> Name	and Phone Number
1.		
2.		
3.		
4.		

(Use the following paragraph when utility adjustments are the responsibility of the City.)

Arrangements for removing, relocating, or adjusting Utilities on the Project are the responsibility of the ~~County~~ (City). Contact the ~~County~~ (City) for information regarding these arrangements.

(Use the following paragraph on projects with organizations that may be adjusting utilities.)

The following organizations may be adjusting Utilities within the limits of the Project during the period of the Contract, with relocation work estimated to be completed by the following dates (times):

Utility	Estimated Completion Date (Time)
1. (Utility company " "Gas Company")	
(Contact person's name and	
phone (Phone number)	

(Use the following paragraph when high-pressure gas lines exist on site.)

In the immediate area of the high-pressure gas lines, when moving any ~~equipment~~Equipment, excavating, driving piles, pounding guardrail posts, boring, or other road construction activities, the Contractor shall increase the Reasonable Accuracy Zone~~tolerance zone~~ from 24 inches, as defined in OAR ~~952-001-010-010952001010~~, to 10 feet. ~~Exceptions require written approval from the "Gas Company" and may require an on-site safety watcher, at no cost to the Contractor.~~Utility. The Contractor shall provide the Engineer a copy of the written approval of the exception before beginning Work.

2. ~~_____~~ (Repeat as needed ~~for~~ "Power Company")

(Use the following paragraph when power lines overhang work areas.)

Energized power lines overhang portions of the Work with a minimum vertical clearance of 18 feet. Contractor shall maintain at least 10 feet of safety clearance.

3. ~~_____~~

This Project is located within the Oregon Utility Notification Center area, which is a Utilities notification system for notifying owners of Utilities about work being performed in the vicinity of their facilities. The Utilities notification system telephone number is 811 (or use the old number, which is ~~1-800-332-2344~~).

(Use the following subsection .55 when there is an existing specific City contract that will be performed within the project site and the Contractor is required to cooperate with the other City contractor. List the contract name, the ~~contractor's~~contractor's name and on-site contact number, and the estimated time the other specific contract work will be taking place within the project limits. Delete the example.)

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors ~~The~~ Add the following ~~contract work will be ongoing within the Project site during~~paragraph at the following times:~~end of the subsection:~~

The following contract work will be ongoing within the Project site during the following times:

Contract Name (Contractor's <u>Contractor's</u> Name)	Estimated Times (From — To)
---	---

*(For example ~~—~~ Your project's bid opening is July 4, 2005, 2021, so:
OR99E Howell Prairie Rd-Wauconda Rd. Aug 20052021 to Oct 31, 20052021
Dewey Cheatum Construction Inc. 541.679.5555123.4567 (On-Site))*

00150.55 Cooperation with Other Contractors ~~– (Addition to OSS 00150.55)~~ Add the following paragraph at the end of the subsection:

If any part of the Contractor's work depends, for proper execution or results, upon the work of any other contractor, the Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to the Engineer any defects in the other work that render it unsuitable for proper execution and results. The Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other contractor's Work as fit and proper for the reception of its work, except as to defects that may develop in the other contractor's work after execution of its work.

Add the following subsection:

00150.76 Protection of Property - The Contractor shall adopt every practical means and comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations in order to minimize interference to traffic and inconveniences, discomfort, and damage to the public, including the provision of adequate dust control measures. All obstructions to traffic shall be guarded in accordance with the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices."

The Contractor shall not trespass upon private property and shall be responsible for all injury or damage to persons or property, directly or indirectly, resulting from its operations in completing this Work. They shall comply with the laws and regulations of the City, county and state, relating to the safety of persons and property, and will be held responsible and required to make good any injury or damage to persons or property caused by carelessness or neglect on the part of the Contractor or Subcontractor(s), or any agent or employee of either during the progress of the Work and until its final acceptance.

The Contractor shall protect property, public and/or private, encountered in this Work except as stipulated elsewhere herein. The Contractor shall be responsible and liable for any damage.

The Contractor shall protect its work and materials from damage or the elements, until the completion and acceptance of the Work. All loss or damages arising under the terms of these Contract Documents, or from any unforeseen obstruction or defects that may be encountered in the prosecution of the Work, or from the action of the elements, shall be sustained by the Contractor.

In an emergency affecting human health or safety, the Contractor shall act to prevent or mitigate the risk or threat. Any compensation claimed by the Contractor on account of emergency work shall be determined by agreement or as covered under the Section "Change Orders".

Add the following subsection:

00150.77 Unforeseen Difficulties - The Contractor shall protect its work and materials from damage resulting from the nature of the work, the elements, carelessness of other contractors, or from any cause whatever until the completion and acceptance of the Work. All loss or damage arising out of the nature of the work to be done under these Contract Documents, or from any unseen obstruction or defects that may be encountered in the prosecution of the Work, or from the action of the elements, shall be sustained by the Contractor.

~~Use~~ This clause is complementary to Section 00170.80 and excludes repairs necessitated by damaged caused by

- Acts of God or Nature, as defined in Section 00110; or
- Actions of governmental authorities.

Add the following subsection ~~91 on projects when a mandatory post-construction meeting is required.~~

00150.91 Post-Construction Review ~~Replace this subsection, except for the subsection number and title, with the following:~~

~~The Contractor shall attend a Post-Construction Review meeting to be held by the City prior to issuance of Third Notification but not earlier than 15 Days following the date of Second Notification. The time and place of this meeting will be announced by the Engineer at least 15 Days prior to the meeting date. The purpose of this meeting is to examine the Project for possible process improvements that may benefit future projects. The Contractor's attendance at the Post-Construction Review meeting is mandatory. _____~~

00150.98 Maintaining Traffic ~~The Contractor shall be responsible to maintain two-way traffic at all times unless otherwise allowed. The streets shall be open for two-way traffic at all times when the Contractor is not performing work unless otherwise allowed. Approaches to all properties accessing the project shall be maintained by the Contractor at all times except for short periods necessary for the progress of the construction.~~

00150.99 Public Safety and Convenience - The Contractor shall conduct the project with proper regard for the safety and convenience of the public. When the project involves use of public ways, the Contractor shall provide certified Flaggers when directed, a temporary traffic control plan approved by the Engineer, and shall install and maintain means of free access to all property.

Private residential driveways shall be closed only with approval of the Engineer or specific permission of the property owner. The Contractor shall not interfere with normal operation of public transit vehicles unless otherwise authorized. The Contractor shall not obstruct or interfere with travel over any public street or sidewalk without approval. Where detours are necessary, they shall be maintained with good surface and shall be clearly marked. The Contractor shall provide open trenches and excavations with adequate barricades of an approved type that can be seen from a reasonable distance.

(Note requirement to backfill all open trenches at night, which may be unreasonable and costly for very deep excavations. Review end-of-shift backfill requirements. If night work is expected and trenches would be backfilled during the day time, update text as required to indicate "end of daily work shift" or similar)

At night, the Contractor shall backfill all open work trenches, unless otherwise specified, and mark all construction areas with signs and lighted barricades (Type A Low Intensity Flashing Warning Light on a Type I or II barricade, typical) in accordance with the *Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices* (MUTCD). Steel plates will not be permitted within the travel way between November 1st and March 1st. The Contractor shall install and maintain all necessary

Section 00150 – Control of Work

signs, lights, flares, barricades, railings, runways, stairs, bridges, and facilities. The Contractor shall observe all safety instructions received from the Engineer or governmental authorities, but following of instructions shall not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility or liability for accidents to workers or damage or injury to persons or property.

Emergency traffic such as police, fire, and disaster units shall be provided reasonable access to the work area at all times.

The Contractor shall be liable for any damages that may result from failure to provide reasonable access or failure to notify the appropriate authority.

Design Clarification Verification Request

PROJECT _____ REQUEST NO. _____
CONTRACTOR _____ DATE _____
PROJECT NO. _____

Clarification/Interpretation Requested by _____

Regarding: Plan sheet _____ of _____ Spec. Section _____

DESCRIPTION:

Prepared by

Date

RESPONSE ASSIGNED TO:

<input type="checkbox"/>	Project Manager
<input type="checkbox"/>	Project Design Manager
<input type="checkbox"/>	Other _____

Signed

Date

CITY OF BEND PUBLIC WORKS
WORK CHANGE DIRECTIVE



CONTRACTOR:: _____ **WCD NO.:** _____
PROJECT: _____ **PROJECT NO.** _____
AGENCY: _____
ENGINEER: _____

The following additions, deletions or revisions to the work have been ordered and authorized:

Description of Work: _____

Reason for change(s): _____

Attachments (List supporting documents): _____

It is understood that this work change directive will not change the contract price or schedule, but is evidence that the parties expect a change order to be subsequently issued reflecting any changes.

ORDERED BY: _____	DATE: _____
RECOMMENEDED BY: _____	DATE: _____

FIELD ORDER

CONTRACTOR _____ **FIELD ORDER NO.** _____

PROJECT _____ **PROJECT NO.** _____

AGENCY _____ **ENGINEER** _____

The following minor changes in the work have been ordered and authorized:

Description of Changes:

Reason for field order:

Reference Drawing sheets and section(s) or detail(s): Reference Specification section(s) /paragraph(s):

The intent of this Field Order is to authorize minor variations to the contract documents not involving a change in contract price or contract schedule and which are compatible with the design concept of the completed project. This Field Order is binding upon AGENCY and upon CONTRACTOR who will perform the work promptly. If AGENCY or CONTRACTOR believes an adjustment to the contract price or contract schedule is necessary, the party may make a claim therefore in accordance with the general conditions.

Issued by Engineer

Contractor Receipt Acknowledgement

By:

By:

Title:

Title:

Date:

Date:

REMOVAL FROM SERVICE (RFS) REQUEST FORM

PROJECT: _____ DATE: _____
PROJECT NUMBER: _____
BUILDING/AREA AFFECTED _____
SYSTEMS/EQUIPMENT AFFECTED _____
DAY OF SHUTDOWN _____ TIME _____ DURATION _____
WORK TO BE ACCOMPLISHED _____

FOREMAN IN CHARGE _____ CREW SIZE _____

SHUTDOWN ACTIVITIES	START TIME	SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS
_____	_____	_____
_____	_____	_____
_____	_____	_____
_____	_____	_____
_____	_____	_____

WORK THAT REQUIRES CITY STAFF PARTICIPATION

PROBLEMS THAT MAY BE ENCOUNTERED AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

Initial
Contractor Superintendent _____
Inspector COB _____
Operations COB _____
☐ Post on EADOC (Per 00170.08)

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

QUOTATION NO. _____

TO: _____ DATE _____

FROM: _____ PROJECT: _____

KEYWORD DESCRIPTION: _____

DATE QUOTATION REQUIRED _____

The following modification to the contract has been identified. Pursuant to the General Conditions, following the order of precedence, please provide a quotation for the alteration as described in Item 1. The quotation should include an itemized breakdown of contractor and subcontractor costs, including labor, materials, rentals, approved services, overhead, and profit. This request shall not be considered authorization to proceed with the work herein described.

TO BE COMPLETED BY INITIATOR OF REQUEST

1. Scope of Work: (include list of attachments)
2. Reason(s) for Modification:
3. Approval of Request:

City of Bend _____ Date _____

Engineer _____ Date _____

TO BE COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR

1. Total cost of modification (attach detailed breakdown) \$ _____
2. Will a modification to the contract time be requires ☐ Yes ☐ No
 - a. If so, trade(s) _____
 - b. Number of personnel _____
 - c. Duration _____ (calendar days)
3. Attachment identification: (list) _____
4. Quotation is in effect until: (date) _____
5. Approval of Quotation _____

Contractor

Date

SUBSTITUTION REQUEST (SR)

PROJECT: _____ **SR NO.** _____

CONTRACTOR: _____ **CONTRACT NO.** _____

ORIGINATOR: _____ **SPEC. SECTION:** _____

DATE SUBMITTED: _____ **DRAWING NO** _____ **SHEET:** _____ **OF** _____

SPECIFIED ITEM:

SECTION	PAGE	PARAGRAPH	DESCRIPTION
----------------	-------------	------------------	--------------------

The undersigned requests consideration for the following:

PROPOSED SUBSTITUTION:

Attached data includes product description, specifications, drawings, photographs, performance and test adequate for evaluation of the request. Applicable portions of the data are clearly identified.

The undersigned states that the following paragraphs, unless modified on attachments, are correct:

1. The proposed substitution does not affect dimensions shown on drawings and will not require any change in any of the contract documents.
2. The undersigned will pay for changes to the design, including engineering design, detailing and construction costs caused by the requested substitution, estimated to be \$ _____.
3. The proposed substitution will have no adverse effect on other contractors, the construction schedule (specifically the date of substantial completion), or specified warranty requirements.
4. Maintenance and service parts will be locally available for the proposed substitution.
5. The incorporation or use of the substitution in connection with the work is not subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.

The undersigned further states that the function, appearance and quality of the proposed substitution are equivalent or superior to the specified item.

Submitted by CONTRACTOR

Reviewed by ENGINEER

Signature: _____

Firm: _____

Date: _____

Telephone: _____

By: _____

Attachments: _____

- ☐ Accepted
- ☐ Accepted as Noted
- ☐ Not accepted
- ☐ Received too Late

Title: _____

_____ **Date:** _____

_____ **Remarks:** _____

SUBMITTAL – TRANSMITTAL FORMS (Need to attach to each submittal)		DATE _____
City of Bend Project Name: _____	Design Engineer: _____	
Project Number: _____	Contractor: _____	
<input type="checkbox"/> New Submittal <input type="checkbox"/> Re-submittal		
Submittal No: _____		
Specification Section No.: _____ (One transmittal per section)		
Schedule Date of Submittal _____		
Submittal Type <input type="checkbox"/> Shop Drawing <input type="checkbox"/> Sample <input type="checkbox"/> Informational <input type="checkbox"/> Deferred		

The following items are hereby submitted:

No. of Copies	Description (Type, Size, Model No., Etc.)	Spec. & Para No.	Drawing No.	Contains Variation to Contract	
				No	Yes

Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor has complied with the requirements of Contract Documents in preparation, review, and submission of designated Submittal and the Submittal is complete and in accordance with the Contract Documents and requirements of laws and regulations and governing agencies.

By: _____
Contractor (Authorized Signature)

Section 00160 – Source of Materials

Comply with Section 00160 of the ~~General Conditions~~Standard Specifications modified as follows:

~~(Replace OSS 00165.05 with the following.)~~

00160.05 – Qualified Products List (QPL) – ~~Refer~~Add the following paragraph:

Products, materials, and equipment listed in the Technical Specifications, Special Provisions or Supplemental Specifications shall be provided in lieu of a similar product on the Qualified Products List. Where no specific product, material, or equipment is specified in the Special Provisions or Supplemental Specifications an item from the QPL may be furnished. Contractor shall submit to the City Design Guide, section 165, Quality of Engineer, a list of any product from the QPL proposed to be included in the work.

ODOT Internet Address: <http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/CONSTRUCTION/>

00160.20 Preferences for Materials – ~~–~~ Add the following paragraph:

All materials shall be new of U.S.A. domestic manufacture that meet all AWWA, APWA, Federal and, State code requirements, as well as local City and County code requirements. Additionally, strict attention shall be given to workmanship, and materials shall be of good quality.

(Use the following subsection .30 when the City will furnish items or materials other than material from a borrow source; for example, poles, timbers, guardrail, etc. Give the location where the items/materials may be picked up. Delete the words in parenthesis and parentheses as needed. For aggregates and other similar materials, use 00160.40.)

00160.30 Agency-Furnished Material - ~~The City will furnish the listed items at the (Project Site:) (following locations:)~~

~~(Use the following subsection .40 on projects for City-furnished material sources. Include ODOT SP235 (for City-furnished material/aggregate sources) or Supplementary Specification Agency Furnished Products 04020 when using this subsection.)~~

00160.40 – ~~Prepare Supplemental Specification 04020, edit and include when Agency-Furnished Sources~~ – ~~Replace this subsection, except for the subsection number and title, with the following:~~

~~City-Furnished Sources for this Project~~ **Materials** *are listed in Section 00235. used on project.*

00160.30 Agency-Furnished Materials - ~~The City will furnish the listed items at the (Project Site:) (following locations:)~~

End of Section

Section 00165— Quality of Materials

Comply with Section 00165 of the [General Conditions Standard Specifications](#) modified as follows:

~~(The following is an addition to OSS 00165.00 General – Add the following after the two OSS paragraphs.)~~ [sentence “Materials or manufactured...”:](#)

00165.00 General — All materials to be incorporated in the Work shall be subject to sampling, testing, and approval. Samples furnished by the Contractor shall be representative of the materials to be used. The Engineer may select samples or may require that samples be delivered to and tested as required by the Specifications at the laboratory of the Engineer, at no additional cost to the City.

All sampling and testing of materials shall be done in accordance with the current designated standard methods of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM), etc., or in accordance with special methods designated in the Specifications.

The Contractor shall furnish, without additional charges, the necessary test pieces and samples, including facilities and labor for obtaining the same, as requested by the Engineer. When required, the Contractor shall furnish test certificates of materials and equipment made at the point of manufacture by a recognized testing laboratory.

The Engineer shall have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress, and the Contractor shall provide facilities for the access, including maintenance of temporary and permanent access routes.

If the Specifications, laws, ordinances, or public authority requires the Work to be tested or approved, the Contractor shall give the Engineer timely notice of its readiness for inspection. If the inspection is by authority other than the Engineer, the Engineer shall be given timely notice of the date fixed for the inspection. Inspections by the Engineer will be promptly made and, where practicable, at the source of supply. If work should be covered without approval or consent of the Engineer, it shall, if required by the Engineer, be uncovered for examination at the Contractor's expense.

Re-examination of questioned work may be ordered by the Engineer and, if so ordered, the work shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If the work is found not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct the defective work at no additional cost to the City.

Observations by Engineer, inspections, tests, or approvals by persons other than the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor from the obligation to perform work in accordance with requirements of the Contract Documents.

[End of Section](#)

Section 00170 – Legal Relations and Responsibilities

Comply with Section 00170 of the General Conditions Standard Specifications modified as follows:

~~00170.01 Other Agencies Affecting Agency Contracts -~~ Add the following ~~article.~~:

00170.01 (For projects involving railroad, review available ODOT boilerplates, and determine what else may be required. The clause below is generally satisfactory to require Contractor to comply with railroad requirements.)

(e) **Railways** - The Contractor shall comply with ~~the any~~ Contractor railway requirements and ~~agreement~~ agreements that are in effect for this Project.

~~(Add the following option, if as applicable.)~~ City shall provide permit and permit fee relative to this project.

~~(Consider and use available ODOT boilerplates for~~ **00170.06- Federal-Aid Participation.** ~~These boilerplates are not included herein.)~~

00170.08 Electronic Document Management – Delete and replace this section with the following:

~~00170.~~ ~~This~~ **08 Project** ~~is to be conducted according to~~ **Document Tracking System Software** -

(a) The Agency and Contractor shall utilize EADOC LLC's EADOC system for electronic submittal of all data and documents throughout the duration of the regulations applying to Federal-Aid Highway Projects Contract. EADOC is a web-based electronic media site that is hosted by EADOC LLC utilizing their EADOC web solution. EADOC will be made available to all Contractors' Project personnel, subcontractor personnel, suppliers, consultants and the Designer of Record. The joint use of this system is to facilitate; electronic exchange of information, automation of key processes, and overall management of the Contract. EADOC shall be the primary means of Project information submission and management. When required by the Agency's representative, paper documents will also be provided. In the event of discrepancy between the electronic version and paper documents the paper documents will govern. EADOC is a registered trademark of EADOC LLC.

(b) ~~Add~~ User Access Limitations:

(1) The Agency's Representative will control the Contractor's access to EADOC by allowing access and assigning user profiles to accepted Contractor personnel. User profiles will define levels of access into the system, determine assigned function-based authorizations (determines what can be seen), and user privileges (determines what they can do). Subcontractors and suppliers will be given access to EADOC through the Contractor. Entry of information exchanged and transferred between the Contractor and its subcontractors and suppliers on EADOC shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

- (2) Joint Ownership of Data: Data entered in a collaborative mode (entered with the intent to share as determined by permissions and workflows within the EADOC system) by the Agency's Representative and the Contractor will be jointly owned.
- (c) Automated System Notification and Audit Log Tracking: Review comments made (or lack thereof) by the Agency on Contractor submitted documentation shall not relieve the Contractor from compliance with requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor is responsible for managing, tracking, and documenting the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Agency's acceptance via automated system notifications or audit logs extends only to the face value of the submitted documentation and does not constitute validation of the Contractor's submitted information.
- (d) Submittals: See Section 01 33 00, Submittal Procedures.
- (e) Computer Requirements: The Contractor shall use computer hardware and software that meets the requirements of the EADOC system as recommended by EADOC LLC to access and utilize EADOC. As recommendations are modified by EADOC, the Contractor will upgrade their system(s) to meet the recommendations or better. Upgrading of the Contractor's computer systems will not be justification for a cost or time modification to the Contract. The Contractor will ensure that connectivity to the EADOC system (whether at the home office or jobsite) is accomplished through high speed broadband communications systems. The minimum bandwidth requirements for using the system is 128 kb/s. It is recommended a faster connection be used when uploading pictures and files into the system. EADOC currently supports multiple web browsers for accessing the application.
- (f) Contractor Responsibility: The Contractor shall be responsible for the validity of their information placed in EADOC and for the abilities of their personnel. Accepted users shall be knowledgeable in the use of computers, including Internet browsers, email programs, CAD drawing applications, and Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF) document distribution program. The Contractor shall utilize the existing forms in EADOC to the maximum extent possible. If a form does not exist in EADOC, the Contractor must include a form of their own or provided by the Agency's Representative as an attachment to a submittal. Adobe PDF documents will be created through electronic conversion rather than optically scanned whenever possible. The Contractor is responsible for the training of their personnel in the use of EADOC (outside what is provided by the Agency) and the other programs indicated above as needed.
- (g) User Access Administration: Provide a list of Contractor's key EADOC personnel for the Agency's Representative acceptance. Contractor is responsible for adding and removing users from the system. The Agency's Representative reserves the right to perform a security check on all potential users. The Contractor will be allowed to add additional personnel and subcontractors to EADOC.
- (h) Connectivity Problems: EADOC is a web-based environment and therefore subject to the inherent speed and connectivity problems of the Internet. The Contractor is responsible for its own connectivity to the Internet. EADOC response time is dependent on the Contractor's equipment, including processor speed, Internet access

speed, etc., and current traffic on the Internet. The Agency will not be liable for any delays associated from the usage of EADOC including, but not limited to slow response time, downtime periods, connectivity problems, or loss of information. The Contractor will ensure that connectivity to the EADOC system (whether at the home office or jobsite) is accomplished through high-speed broadband communication systems. Under no circumstances shall the usage, of the EADOC be grounds for a time extension or cost adjustment to the Contract.

(i) Training:

(1) The Agency has arranged for the following ~~text~~ training to be provided to the first paragraph in 00170.60.) Contractor:

(2) Up to two training sessions will be offered for Contractor and Subcontractor personnel to be coordinated at a time arranged by Contractor with Agency's Representative within 21 days of Notice to Proceed. Contractor participation in training is strongly encouraged and shall be considered incidental to the Work.

00170.60 Safety, Health, and Sanitation Provisions – Add the following after the sentence "According to ORS 468A.715...":

As required by law or administrative regulation, the necessary sanitary conveniences, properly secluded from public observation, shall be erected and maintained by the Contractor at all times while people are employed on the Work, and use of the sanitary conveniences shall be strictly enforced. The location of the conveniences shall be approved by the Engineer.

~~-(The following subsection .65(e) is required only on Federal-Aid projects that do not require Davis-Bacon prevailing wages. Use one of according to the following options for:~~

- ~~Do not use this subsection .65(b) on federally projects that are funded projects when by the Safe Routes to School Program.~~
- ~~Do not use this subsection on projects that are required by an environmental document, even if the project is away from the Federal-aid highway right-of-way. Example: wetland mitigation. (This type of project is linked to, or dependent upon, the Federal aid highway project.)~~
- ~~Use this subsection on projects that have a Functional Classification of 08 rural minor collector, 09 rural local, or 19 urban local. Delete both options if they do not apply or, if one does apply, delete the option that does not apply (Obtain the Functional Classification from the project Insurance Risk Assessment.)~~
- ~~[Option 1 – Use these two this subsection .65(b)s on federally funded projects when that are not located within the Federal-Aid highway right-of-way, and are not linked to, nor dependent upon, the Federal-Aid highway. Examples:~~
 - ~~Restoration of a historic railroad station~~

- Construction of an independent bike path
- A landscaping or scenic beautification project that is a Functional Classification of 08 rural minor collector, 09 rural local, or 19 urban local.]not on the Federal-Aid highway right-of-way and is not required because of a Federal-aid highway project

~~[Begin Option 1 subsection .65(b)]~~

For questions about application of this section contact the ODOT State Specifications Engineer.)

00170.65(b)-e) Additional Requirements When Federal Funds Areare Involved - Replace this subsection, except for the subsection number and title, with the following ~~subsection:~~

00170.65(b) When Local Road or Rural Minor Collector Federal Funds Are Involved - For this local road or rural minor collectorFor this Federal-Aid Project, the Contractor shall comply with 00170.65(ea) through 00170.65(d) and the provisions of Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Form 1273, "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts", except Sections Section IV and V do not apply.

~~[End Option 1 subsection .65(b)]~~

~~[Option 2 – Use this subsection .65(b) on federally funded projects when the project is a Functional Classification of 08 rural minor collector, 09 rural local, or 19 urban local.]~~

~~[Begin Option 2 subsection .65(b)]~~

00170.65(b) When Federal Funds Are Involved - Replace the paragraph that begins "For Federal-Aid projects..." with the following paragraph and bullets:

For American Recovery and Reconstruction Act of 2009 (ARRA) Federal-Aid funded projects, the Contractor shall comply with the following:

The provision of FHWA Form 1273, "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts", with the exception that the introductory paragraph of Sections IV and V, which states "(Applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts, except for projects located on roadways classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt.)" is replaced with the following introductory paragraph: does not apply.

~~(Applicable to all Federal-Aid construction contracts exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts.)~~

- ~~ORS 279C.520 (see (a) of this subsection) and ORS 279C.540~~

~~{End Option 2 subsection .65(b)}~~

~~{UseAdd the following subsection .65(c) on rock production projects.}~~

~~{Begin subsection .65(c)}~~

~~00170.65(c) When No Federal Funds Are Involved~~ Replace this subsection, except for subsection number and title, with the following:

~~Wage rate and fringe benefit schedules are not required for the Project.~~

~~{End subsection .65(c)}~~

00170.66 Contractor’s and Manufacturer’s Compliance with State, OSHA, and Other Applicable Code Requirements - The completed Work shall include all necessary permanent safety devices such as machinery guards and similar ordinary safety items required by the state and federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) industrial authorities and applicable local and national codes. Further, any features of the Work (including City selected equipment) subject to the safety regulations shall be fabricated, furnished, and installed in compliance with these requirements. Contractors and manufacturers of equipment shall be held responsible for compliance with the requirements included herein.

~~(Revise OSS 00170.70 with the following material.)~~

~~(h) No Personal Liability of Public Officials - In carrying out any of the provisions herein or exercising any authority granted by the Agreement, there would be no personal liability upon any public official.~~

~~00170.70(a) Insurance Coverages~~ (addition) The following ~~Contact Issuing Officer to provide input for~~ insurance coverages ~~and dollar amounts are required pursuant to this subsection:~~

Insurance	Combined Single Limit	Annual Aggregate
Coverages	per Occurrence	Limit

~~{Fill in the blanks with the dollar amounts from the consistent with project risk assessment summary.}~~

Commercial General Liability \$ _____ \$ _____

~~Commercial Automobile Liability~~ \$ _____ ~~(aggregate limit requirements, which will be in the contract not required the Part 100’s)~~

~~{Include the following pollution liability item only when it is required by the risk assessment summary; otherwise, delete it.}~~

Pollution Liability _____ \$ _____ \$ _____

00170.70 Delete this section in its entirety and replace as follows:

0170.70 Insurance Coverages – See Public Improvement

~~(Include one or both of the following bullets only when they are required by the risk assessment summary. Delete them if they are not required.)~~

- ~~• With Asbestos Liability Endorsement or separate coverage~~
- ~~• With Lead Liability Endorsement or separate coverage~~

~~(Include the following commercial automobile liability with pollution liability item only when it is required by the risk assessment summary; otherwise, delete it.)~~

Commercial Automobile Liability
with Pollution Coverage _____ \$ _____ (aggregate limit not required)

~~**00170.70(c) Additional Insured**~~ – (Add the following paragraph and bullets to the end of this subsection)

~~Add the following as Additional Insureds under the Contract:~~

- ~~• The City and its officers, agents, and employees~~
- ~~• The Bend City Council~~

NOTE – MAY ADD ADDITIONAL INSUREDS, SUCH AS OUTSIDE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVES IN SOME CASES

~~for~~

~~**00170.70(g) Builders' Risk**~~ – (Add the following to the end of this subsection)

~~Provide Builders' Risk insurance for an amount equal to at least \$ _____. The policy shall include as loss payee, the Agency and _____ (County or City Owner of Building) _____ amounts and coverages required.~~

00170.72 Indemnity/Hold Harmless – ~~(Add the following~~ after the ~~paragraph and bullets to the end of this subsection)~~ that begins with “In claims against...”:

Extend indemnity and hold harmless to the Agency and the following:

The City of Bend and its officers, agents, and employees

- ~~• The Bend City Council~~

NOTE – MAY ADD ADDITIONAL ENTITIES, SUCH AS OUTSIDE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVES IN SOME CASES

00170.85 – Add a New Subsection (d):

(Note – City Project Manager may choose to add additional entities, such as outside engineering consultants, third party construction manager consultants, suppliers of Agency-furnished equipment, or Agency representatives in some cases.)

00170.85.b.2 General Warranty for Local Agency Project – Delete this section in its entirety. See Public Improvement Contract for warranty requirements.

00170.85 Responsibility for Defective Work - Add the following:

(d) Remedies Cumulative-

- Nothing in this Section 00170.85 precludes the City from asserting any other remedy or theory of recovery, including breach of contract and negligence for defects in the Work.

Add the following subsection:

00170.95 Ownership of Drawings ~~---~~ All Plans, Drawings, Specifications and copies furnished by the City are the City's property and are not to be used on other work and, with the exception of the signed contract set, are to be returned on request at completion of the work. Any reuse of these materials without written authorization by the City will be at the risk of the user and without any liability or legal expense to the City. All models are the property of the City.

End of Section

Section 00180 – Prosecution and Progress

Comply with Section 00180 of the General Conditions Standard Specifications modified as follows:

~~(Add the following to OSS Section 00180.30.)~~

00180.05 Assignment/Delegation of Contract - Delete and replace first sentence of this paragraph as follows:

Unless the Agency gives prior written consent, which may be withheld in the City's sole discretion, the Contractor shall not assign, delegate, sell, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any rights or obligations under the Contract, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, and whether by merger, consolidation, dissolution, operation of law, or any other manner, including, without limitation:

- The power to execute or duty to perform the Contract; or
- Any of its right, title or interest in the Contract.

00180.30 Materials, Equipment, and Work Force – Add the following above the paragraph starting with "The work force shall...":

The Contractor at all times shall enforce strict discipline and good order among its employees. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable labor rules, wage scales, and regulations, including nondiscriminatory laws, of the Government of the United States, the State, County, and City or Town in which the Work is performed.

00180.31 Required Materials, Equipment, and Methods – Delete (b) and (c) and replace with the following:

00180.31(b) Substitution and "Or-Equal" Products - The Agency will not consider substitute or "or-equal" products during the bid period, but only after Contract award. Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a particular manufacturer or supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function, and quality required. If the name is followed by the words "or equal", indicating that substitution is permitted, materials or equipment of alternate manufacturers or suppliers may be accepted by the Engineer if sufficient information is provided by the Contractor to allow the Engineer to determine that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to the named manufacturer's material or equipment. The proposed substitutes or "or equal" submittal procedure also applies to Equipment Manufacturers/Suppliers originally listed by the Contractor in the Bid Proposal Attachment that are not named in the specifications. Submittals are subject to the following requirements:

The burden of proof as to the type, function, and quality of any such substitute material or equipment shall be upon the Contractor.

The Engineer shall be the sole judge as to the type, function, and quality of any such substitute material or equipment, and the Engineer's decision shall be final.

The Engineer may require the Contractor to furnish, at the Contractor's sole expense, additional data about the proposed substitute.

The Agency may require the Contractor to furnish, at the Contractor's sole expense, a special five-year performance guarantee or other surety with respect to the substitute material or equipment.

Acceptance by the Engineer of a substitute item proposed by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents and the adequacy of the substitute item.

The Contractor shall be responsible for resultant changes and all additional costs which the accepted substitution requires in the Contractor's work, the work of the Contractor's Subcontractors, and all other Contractor's; and the Contractor shall accomplish such changes without cost to the Agency or Engineer.

Procedure for review by the Engineer will include the following:

If the Contractor proposes to furnish or use a substitute item of material or equipment, the Contractor shall make written application to the Engineer on the "Substitution Request Form" included in these Supplementary Conditions for acceptance thereof.

Unless otherwise provided by law or authorized in writing by the Engineer, the "Substitution Request Form" shall be submitted within the 35-day period after Award of the Contract.

Whenever a proposed substitute material or equipment has not been submitted within the said 35-day period, or whatever submission of a proposed substitute material or equipment has been judged to be unacceptable by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide the material or equipment named in the Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall certify that the proposed substitute shall perform adequately the function and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified, and be suited to the same use as that specified.

The Engineer shall be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed substitute.

As applicable, no shop drawing submittals shall be made for a substitute item, nor will any substitute item be ordered, installed, or used without the Engineer's prior acceptance of the Contractor's "Substitution Request Form" (00150.40(2)), which will be evidenced by a change order.

The Contractor's Application using the "Substitution Request Form" shall contain the following statements and/or information which shall be considered by the Engineer in evaluating the proposed substitution:

The evaluation and acceptance of the proposed substitute shall not prejudice the Contractor's achievement of substantial completion on time.

Whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents to adopt the design to the proposed substitute.

Whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute item in connection with the work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty

All variations of the proposed substitute for that specified shall be identified.

Available maintenance, repair and replacement costs and services shall be included. Itemized estimate of all costs that may result directly or indirectly from the acceptance of such substitute, including costs of redesign and claims from other Contractors affected by the resulting change.

Within 35 calendar days following the Contract Date, the Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer, a complete list of proposed substitutions together with shop drawings and/or such technical data as is defined in the Contract Documents, submittal procedures.

(Use the following subsection .40(b) when limitations prevent all contractor work before a specified date. Fill in the specific date.)

00180.40(b) On-Site Work - Add the following ~~paragraph~~ to after the ~~end of the subsection:~~ bullet that begins with “Assembled all Materials”:

The Contractor shall not begin On-Site Work before ____ (Date) ____, unless approved by the Engineer.

(Use the following lead-in sentence and subsection .40(c) when limitations are included in the Special Provisions. -Delete the limitations that do not apply.)

~~Add the following subsection:~~

Add the following subsection:

00180.40(c) ~~Specific Limitations~~ - Limitations Specific Limitations - Limitations of operations specified in these Special Provisions include, but are not limited to, the following:

Limitations	Subsection
..... Cooperation with Utilities 00150.50
..... Cooperation with Other Contractors 00150.55
..... <u>Railway Work</u> 00170.01(e)
<u>Railways</u> 00170.01(e)
..... Contract <u>Completion</u> Time 00180.50(h)
..... Right-of-Way and Access Delays 00180.65

<u>.....Traffic Lane Restrictions.....</u>			
<u>Closed Lanes</u>		<u>00220.40(e)(1)</u>	
<u>.....Special Events.....</u>			
<u>.....</u>		<u>00220.40(e)(2)(b)</u>	
<u>In-water Limited</u>	<u>Duration</u>	<u>Road</u>	<u>Closure</u>
<u>.....</u>		<u>00220.40(f)</u>	
<u>Road Closure Using Rolling Slowdown Method</u>		<u>00220.40(g)</u>	
<u>Regulated Work Restrictions</u>		<u>Areas</u>	
<u>.....</u>		<u>00290.34(a)</u>	
<u>.....Noise Control.....</u>			
<u>.....</u>		<u>00290.32</u>	
<u>Maintenance Under Traffic</u>		<u>00620.43</u>	
<u>Opening Sections to Traffic</u>		<u>00744.51</u>	
<u>Opening Sections to Traffic</u>		<u>00745.51</u>	

(Use the following paragraphs when the project is within irrigation districts. Obtain information from the relevant irrigation district.)

[Begin irrigation paragraphs]

When submitting the supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule, the Contractor shall show all Work that impacts the (insert irrigation district name) canals and channels.

Irrigators have legal rights to use irrigation water from the canals and channels of the (insert irrigation district name) in (insert contact office location of the irrigation district for the project).

During the irrigation season of (insert date: example April 1) through (insert date: example October 31), the Contractor shall not restrict the flow of water or contaminate the water of the (insert irrigation district name).

During the non-irrigation season of (insert date: example November 1) through (insert date: example May 31), the Contractor shall allow a (insert number of days) day stock water run approximately every 30 Days. The Contractor shall contact the (insert irrigation district name) for the stock water run times.

[End irrigation paragraphs]

(Use the following paragraph when limitations prevent contractor work within the limits of the project, before a specified date, or for a duration. Fill in the specific dates.)

Be aware of the schedule limitations in the Standard Specifications that are not listed in this subsection.

00180.41- Project Work Schedules - After the paragraph that begins "Contractor's activity..." add the following paragraph:

~~The Contractor shall submit a supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule each week to the Engineer. An exception to this provision may be given by the Engineer when projects are small or of a simple nature. The "look ahead" Project Work schedule is supplemental to the Type A, B, or C schedule specified below. The supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule shall:~~

- ~~• Identify the sequencing of activities and time required for prosecution of the Work~~
- ~~• Provide for orderly, timely, and efficient prosecution of the Work~~
- ~~• Contain sufficient detail to enable both the Contractor and the Engineer to plan, coordinate, analyze, document, and control their respective Contract responsibilities~~

~~The supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule shall be written in common terminology and show the planned work activities broken down into logical, separate activities by area, stage, and size, and shall include the following information:~~

- ~~• The resources the Contractor, Subcontractors, or services will use~~
- ~~• The locations of each activity that will be done, including the limits of the Work by mile posts, stations, or other indicators~~
- ~~• The time frames of each activity by Calendar Days, shifts, and hours~~
- ~~• All anticipated shoulder, lane, and road closures~~

~~**(City Project Manager shall determine**~~

~~At a minimum, the Contractor shall prepare a bar chart that:~~

- ~~• Shows at least three weeks of activity including the week the bar chart is issued~~
- ~~• Uses a largest time scale unit of one Calendar Day. Smaller time scale units may be used if needed.~~
- ~~• Is appropriate to the activities~~
- ~~• Identifies each Calendar Day by month and day~~

~~Include the Contract name, Contract number, Contractor's name, and date of issue on each page of the bar chart.~~

~~The Contractor shall submit the supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule starting at First Notification and continuing each week until Second Notification has been issued and all punch list items and final trimming and cleanup has been completed. The Contractor shall meet with the Engineer each week to review the supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule. If the Engineer or the Contractor determines that the current supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule requires changes or additions, either notations can be made on the current schedule or the Engineer may require the submittal of a revised supplemental "look ahead" Project Work schedule. Review of the current and subsequent supplemental "look~~

~~ahead" Project Work schedules does not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for timely and efficient execution of the Contract.~~

(Obtain the type of schedule ("A," "B", or "C") from the project Scheduler. Insert the type in the blank.)

In addition to the "look ahead" Project Work schedule, a Type _____ schedule as detailed in the Standard Specifications is required on this Contract.

(For most projects, use the following subsections .41(b-2) when a Type "B" Schedule is required. For complex multidisciplinary projects use of Primavera P6 high performance scheduling software is appropriate and could be considered the industry standard scheduling software for these large/complex projects. Certain consulting and construction management firms have expertise in evaluation of various schedule submissions (in Primavera P6) and are capable of supporting the City identifying changes, and schedule characteristics (like float suppression) that should be carefully evaluated and responded to in the course of construction administration. Consider retaining Primavera P6, as per OSS, for these complex projects.)

00180.41(b)(2) Detailed Schedule – Delete "the current version of Primavera P6 by Oracle."

(Use the following subsections .41(b-2) and c-1) .41(b-3-ac-2) when a Type "BC" Schedule is required.)

[Begin .41(b-2) and .41(b-3-a)]

00180.41(b-2c)(1) Detailed Schedule – ~~Replace~~ Delete "the paragraph that begins "In addition to the above requirements..." with the following two paragraphs:

~~In addition to the above requirements, and within 30 Calendar Days after the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall provide the Engineer one digital copy and four paper copies current version of a detailed time-scaled bar chart Project Work schedule indicating the critical course of the Work. The digital copy shall be compatible with MS Project 2003, Primavera P3, SureTrak Project Manager 3.0, or another scheduling program approved P6 by the Engineer. Oracle."~~

00180.41(c) (2) Detailed Schedule – Delete "the current version of Primavera P6 by Oracle."

(Specification Sections 00150.50 an 00150.55 contemplate work schedule activities shall including the following: of other utilities in coordination with the Work. this clause below is intended to require contractor to invite said utilities to the Preconstruction Conference and to show/incorporate their work in the schedule presented at the Preconstruction Conference.)

~~Replace the paragraph that begins "Within 10 Calendar Days..." with the following paragraph:~~

~~Within 10 Calendar Days after submission of the Project Work schedule, the Engineer and the Contractor shall meet to review the Project Work schedule as submitted. Within 10 Days of the review meeting the Contractor shall resubmit to the Engineer one digital and four paper copies of the Project Work schedule, including required revisions.~~

~~**00180.41(b-3-a) Review with the Engineer** In the paragraph that begins "The Contractor shall evaluate...", replace the sentence that begins "The Contractor shall submit..." with the following sentence:~~

~~The Contractor shall submit one digital and four paper copies of the updated bar chart to the Engineer within 7 Days after the progress meeting, along with a progress report as required by "b." below.~~

~~**{End .41(b-2) and .41(b-3-a)}**~~

~~**(Replace OSS 00180.42 with the following.)**~~

~~**00180.42 Preconstruction Conference** — Before work is started and materials ordered, the Contractor shall meet and consult with the Engineer relative to materials, equipment, and all arrangements for prosecuting the Work. The Contractor shall commence the Work contemplated under these Contract Documents within 3 days after the City's written notice to proceed unless otherwise notified by the Engineer, and shall complete the Work within the time specified in the Agreement, it being expressly understood and agreed that the time of beginning, rate of progress, and time of completion of the Work are of the essence of this Agreement.~~

~~Before meeting with the Engineer for the preconstruction conference, hold a group utilities scheduling meeting with~~**00180.42 Preconstruction Conference** ~~– Add the following to the end of this subsection as follows:~~

~~If Utility work is part of the Contract, Contractor shall contact~~ representatives from the utility companies involved with this project. ~~Incorporate Contractor shall incorporate~~ the utility's ~~time needswork~~ into the ~~Contractor's Contractor's~~ schedule ~~submitted at prior to~~ the preconstruction conference.

~~**(Use one of the following four .50(h) subsection options, as appropriate. Fill in the blanks.)**~~

~~**(Option 1. When on-site work is to be controlled, use the following.)**~~

~~**00180.50(h)-c()** Calendar Day Calculation~~ Delete and replace as follows:

~~When the Contract Time – Complete all work to be done under the~~ is stated in Calendar Days, counting of Contract before the elapse of ____ Calendar Days, or not later than _____, whichever occurs first.

~~Recording of the elapse of~~ Calendar Days will begin on the day ~~the Contractor begins On-Site Work as defined in 00110.20, stated in the Notice to Proceed.~~

~~(Option 2. When seeding establishment or plant establishment is required, use the following. Delete what does not apply. Remove parentheses.)~~

00180.50(h)-d) Recording Contract Time ~~Complete all work to be done under the time.~~ Delete and replace as follows:

All Contract, except for (seeding establishment) (and) plant establishment, not later than _____, time will be recorded and charged to the nearest one-half day.

~~(Option 3. When there are two completion times, use the following.)~~

~~((Use one of the following .50(h) lead-in sentence options, according to the number of completion times to be used. NOTE: contract times are detailed in the Contract. Use caution in this sentence when re-stating any contract times.)~~

~~Note: If either durable pavement markings (00865) or high-performance pavement markings (00866) are required, and the completion date is after September 15, check with the Scheduler and request two multiple completion times.)~~

~~(Note: If permanent seeding (01030) or planting (01040) is required, and the completion date is outside the planting seasons (see 01030.43(b) or 01040.41 and .42), check with the Scheduler and request two multiple completion times. Delete what does not apply. Remove parentheses.)~~

[Begin lead-in sentence options]

[Option 1 - Use to specify one completion time.]

00180.50(h) Contract Time - There is one Contract Time on this Project as follows:

[Option 2 - Use to specify two completion times.]

00180.50(h) Contract Time - There are two Contract Times on this Project as follows:

[Option 3 - Use to specify three completion times.]

00180.50(h) (1) Complete Contract Time - There are three Contract Times on this Project as follows:

[End lead-in sentence Options]

(Use one or more of the following paragraphs as needed to specify one or more INTERIM completion dates. Fill in the blanks. Copy one of the paragraphs if needed for projects with two interim completion times. Delete paragraphs that do not

apply. Replace “X” with a sequential number, starting with “1” for the first paragraph used.)

[Begin interim completion date options.]

(X) The Contractor shall complete all workWork to be done under the Contract, except for _____, not later than _____.

~~(2) Complete~~(X) The Contractor shall complete all workWork to be done under the Contract, ~~(required to~~ _____ not later than _____.

(X) The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract, except for _____, before the elapse of _____ Calendar Days, or not later than _____, whichever occurs first.

(X) The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract required to _____ before the elapse of _____ Calendar Days, or not later than _____, whichever occurs first.

[Example: “The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract required to remove and replace Span 5 of Bridge No. 02025, including reinstalled end panel, final ACP wearing course, and permanent bridge rails; and reopen the Santiam Highway (US20) to two traffic lanes, before the elapse of 110 Calendar Days, or not later than July 31, 2016, whichever occurs first.”]

[End interim completion date options.]

(Use ONE of the following paragraphs to specify a single completion time, or as the FINAL paragraph for projects with multiple completion times. Fill in the blanks. Delete paragraphs that do not apply. Remove parentheses. Replace “X” with a sequential number when there are multiple completion times, or delete “(X)” entirely when there is only one completion time.)

[Begin final completion date options.]

(X) The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract, except for (seeding establishment) (and) (plant establishment), before the elapse of _____ Calendar Days, or not later than _____, whichever occurs first.

~~(Option 4. When none of the three options above apply, use the following.)~~

(X) The Contractor shall complete
~~00180.50(h) Contract Time~~ Complete all workWork to be done under the Contract before the elapse of _____ Calendar Days, or not later than _____, whichever occurs first.

~~(Use the following subsection .65 when right-of-way access delays are necessary. Fill in the blanks with the appropriate information.)~~

(X) The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract, except for (seeding establishment) (and) (plant establishment), not later than _____.

(X) The Contractor shall complete all Work to be done under the Contract not later than _____.

[End final completion date options.]

00180.65 Right-of-Way and Access Delays - Add the following ~~paragraph:~~paragraphs:

- Temporary or Permanent easements that are the City's responsibility to obtain under the Contract Documents.

It is anticipated that the ending date of an anticipated delay for the following properties will be as shown:

File ____ (R/W file number) (Stations right and left) ____ not later than ____ (Date) ____.

Add the following subsection:

00180.66 Delays and Extension of Time -

If the Contractor shall be delayed at any time in the progress of the Work by any act or neglect of the City; or of any employee of the City; or by any separate contractor employed by the City; or by changes ordered in the Work; or by strikes, lockouts, fire, unavoidable casualties, or any cause beyond the Contractor's control that justified the delay, or by any delay authorized in writing by the Engineer; then the date for completion of the Work shall be extended. Within 14 days after the Contractor submits to the Engineer a written request for an extension of time, the Engineer will determine the number of days extension due to the Contractor. The City will make the final decision on all requests for extension of time.

No extension shall be made for delays occurring more than 7 days before claim is made in writing to the Engineer. In case of a continuing cause of delay, only one claim is necessary.

~~If no schedule or agreement stating the date upon which supplemental drawings shall be furnished by the Engineer is made, then no claim for delay shall be allowed the Contractor on account of failure to furnish drawings until 2 weeks after demand for the drawings, and not then unless the claim be reasonable.~~

No extension of time will be granted to the Contractor for delays occurring to parts of the Work that have no measurable impact on the completion of the total Work under this Agreement:

No extension of time will be considered for weather conditions normal to the area in which the work is being performed. Unusual weather conditions, if determined by the Engineer to

be of a severity that would stop all progress of the work, may be considered as cause for an extension of Agreement completion time.

Delays in delivery of equipment or material purchased by the Contractor or its Subcontractors ~~(including City selected equipment)~~ shall not be considered as a just cause for delay. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the timely ordering, scheduling, expediting, delivery, and installation of all equipment and materials.

The contract time may only be changed by a Change Order.

(City Project Manager

~~00180.85~~ **Failure to Complete on time; Liquidated Damages:**

~~(a.) It is agreed that the amount of additional expense and damage incurred by reason of failure to complete the Work shall be as given in the following schedule for each workday the work exceeds the number of workdays specified.~~

<u>Original Contract Amount</u>	<u>Liquidated Damages</u>
Up to \$10,000	\$500
\$10,000 to \$100,000	\$1,000
\$100,000 to \$500,000	\$1,500
Greater than \$500,000	\$2,000

~~*These amounts are agreed upon as prepare computation of liquidated damages for the loss to the City on account of expense due to the employment of Engineers, Inspectors, and other employees after the expiration of the time of completion, and on account of the value of the operation of the Work dependent thereon. It is expressly understood and agreed that projects exceeding \$1,000,000 and have this amount is not to be considered in the nature of a penalty, but as liquidated damages that have accrued against the Contractor; and the City is authorized to deduct the amount of the damages from any monies due the Contractor for work performed or material furnished under this Agreement; and the Contractor and its Sureties shall be liable for any excess on-file prior to bid.)*~~

~~(Note:~~

00180.85(b)(1) Single Contract Time - Replace this subsection, except for the subsection number and title, with the following:

Section 00190 – Measurement of Pay Quantities

~~The minimum liquidated damages will be all~~Liquidated Damages per Calendar Day* are 15.0 percent of the City's incurred costs for administration and inspection beyond the approved~~C divided by T as defined in this Section.~~

C = The Contractor's Bid amount for the Contract.

T = The total Calendar Days between the latest completion date.) or time listed under 00180.50(h) in the Solicitation Documents and the Bid Opening that will result in the greatest value for T.

~~Section 00190 – Measurement of Pay Quantities~~

~~*(Use the following paragraph when 00190.20(f-2) and 20(g) are NOT included in the project.)*~~

~~Comply with Section 00190 of the General Conditions as modified in this section.~~

~~*(Use the following lead-in paragraph when 00190.20(f-2) and 20(g) are included in the project.)*~~

~~Comply with Section 00190 of the General Conditions* Calendar Day amounts are applicable when the Contract time is expressed on the Calendar Day or fixed date basis.~~

00180.90 Termination of Contract and Substituted Performance - Delete this Section in its entirety. See Public Improvement Contract for termination provisions.

End of Section

~~modified as follows:~~

~~(Use the following subsections .20(f-2) and .20(g) when materials are to be weighed to determine pay quantities.)~~

~~**00190.20(f-2) Scale Without Automatic Printer** – Add the following sentence after the first paragraph:~~

~~Pay costs for the weigh witness at \$35.00 per hour.~~

~~**00190.20(g) Agency-Provided Weigh Technician** – Add the following paragraph after the bullet list:~~

~~Pay costs for the weigh technician at \$35.00 per hour.~~

~~**MODIFICATIONS APPLICABLE IN ALL CASES**~~

~~Sections 00195.10, 00195.12 and 00195.80 are deleted.~~

Section 00195 – Payment

Comply with Section 00195 of the ~~General Conditions~~Standard Specification modified as follows:

00195.10 Payment for Changes in Materials Costs - Delete and replace with following:

No material price escalation/de-escalation is allowed on City projects unless specifically identified and defined in the Contract Documents. All OSS clauses relating to this matter are not applicable on City projects.

(The Specifier shall delete or include as applicable to the project work. Use of escalation clauses is appropriate for certain projects, but requires subjective decision making regarding inclusion in Contract Documents. It is most appropriate for projects with “significant” quantities of oil or asphalt, and in multi-year or long duration contracts, or in periods of significant oil price volatility. It may be appropriate to contact paving contractors or asphalt suppliers prior to bid to characterize current market conditions to determine if escalation clause is warranted. City Project Manager is encouraged to consider actual quantities of asphalt binder or oil in the project, and determine sensitivity of oil prices changes to actual escalation gross value. It has difficult to make generalizations, but if effort to manage the escalation exceeds the potential value of the escalation differential, then it is not worth adding this clause.

If needing Escalation and De-escalation for oil. Add this section.)

00195.2010 Payment for Changes ~~to Plans of Character of Work~~

~~(in Materials Costs -~~ Replace ~~paragraph 00195.20(a)~~this subsection with the following ~~new paragraph.)~~subsection:

00195.10 Asphalt Cement Material Price Escalation/De-escalation - An asphalt cement escalation/de-escalation clause will be in effect during the life of the Contract.

The Agency reserves all of its rights under the Contract, including, but not limited to, its rights for suspension of the Work under 00180.70 and its rights for termination of the Contract under 00180.90, and this escalation/de-escalation provision shall not limit those rights.

(a) Monthly Asphalt Cement Material Price (MACMP) - The Monthly Asphalt Cement Material Price (MACMP) will be established by the Agency each month and will be based on the published prices of PG 64-22 asphalt cement furnished by Poten & Partners, Inc. Portland, Oregon area prices will be used as the basis of the MACMP and is the sole area to be used as the basis for all asphalt cement used on the Project. Each MACMP for a given month will be the average of the published prices for that MACMP for each Friday in that month.

For information regarding the calculation of the MACMP, and for the actual MACMP, go to the Agency website at:

<https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Business/Pages/Asphalt-Fuel-Price.aspx>

If the Agency-selected index ceases to be available for any reason, the Agency in its discretion will select and begin using a substitute price source or index to establish the MACMP each month. The MACMP will apply to all asphalt cement including but not limited to paving grade, polymer modified, and emulsified asphalts, and recycling agents. The Agency does not guarantee that asphalt cement will be available at the MACMP.

(b) Base Asphalt Cement Material Price (Base) - The base asphalt cement material price for this Project is the MACMP published on the Agency website for the month immediately preceding the Bid Opening date.

(c) Monthly Asphalt Cement Adjustment Factor - The monthly asphalt cement adjustment factor will be determined each month as follows:

- If the MACMP is within $\pm 5\%$ of the Base, there will be no adjustment.
- If the MACMP is more than 105% of the Base, then:

$$\text{Adjustment Factor} = (\text{MACMP}) - (1.05 \times \text{Base})$$

- If the MACMP is less than 95% of the Base, then:

$$\text{Adjustment Factor} = (\text{MACMP}) - (0.95 \times \text{Base})$$

(d) Asphalt Cement Price Adjustment - A price adjustment will be made for the items containing asphalt cement listed below. The price adjustment as calculated in (c) above will use the MACMP for the month the asphalt is incorporated into the Project. The price adjustment will be determined by multiplying the asphalt incorporated during the month for subject Pay Items by the Adjustment Factor.

The Pay Items for which price adjustments will be made are:

Pay Item(s)

- **(List all Pay Items in which price adjustments apply. Use complete and accurate Pay Item names. Add or delete Pay Items as appropriate.)**

Asphalt in	ACP
Emulsified Asphalt in Fog Coat	
Emulsified Asphalt for Tack Coat	
Asphalt in Emulsified Asphalt Chip Seal	
Asphalt in Multiple Application Emulsified Asphalt Surface Treatment	
Emulsified Asphalt in Mixture	
Recycling Agent	

[End subsection .10]

- **(Use the following lead-in paragraph and subsection .11 on projects with estimated fuel usage in excess of 25,100 gallons. The estimated fuel usage is for the major Pay Items or specific Structure Numbers that are listed for coverage under this specification.**

[Begin subsection .11]

Add the following subsection:

Delete the following Sections: 00195.12 and 00195.80

00195.20(a) Insignificant Changed Work – Delete and replace with the following.

(a) Change Orders - Payment or credit for any alterations covered by a Change Order shall be determined by one or a combination of methods below.

- **Unit Prices** - If applicable, the unit prices stated in the Proposal or unit prices negotiated and mutually acceptable to the Contractor and City.
- **Lump Sum** - A total sum for the Work negotiated and mutually acceptable to the Contractor and City.

The Contractor's quotations for Change Orders shall be in writing and firm for a period of 45 days. Any compensation agreed upon, and subsequently paid by the City for work defined in a Change Order, shall be deemed to include all costs and expenses related to the work, including the costs and expenses to a direct, indirect, and consequential nature, or otherwise, and it is specifically understood and agreed that no additional compensation may be subsequently sought or charged by the Contractor for the work covered by the applicable Change Order.

The City's request for quotations on alterations to the work shall not be considered authorization to proceed with the work prior to the issuance of a formal Change Order, nor shall the request justify any delay in existing work.

~~**Replace Section 00195.80 00195.50(b) Retainage:**~~ Delete the sentence in first paragraph starting with: "The Amount to be retained..." with the following:

The amount to be retained from progress payments shall be 5% of the value of the Work accomplished.

~~**00195.9050(c) Forms of Retainage:**~~ Delete in its entirety.

~~**00195.80 Allowance for Materials Left on Hand – Delete and replace section with the following:**~~

~~**00195.80 Materials delivered to the work site but not used.**~~

- Final payment will be made only for materials actually incorporated in the work. Upon acceptance of the work, all materials stored on the site, unless otherwise agreed upon in writing, shall revert to the Contractor.

Add the following subsection:

~~**00195.89 Release of Liens**~~ – Except for payments to Subcontractors, neither the final payment nor any part of the retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to the City a signed affidavit, satisfactory to the City, stating that so far as the

Contractor has knowledge or information, all accounts for materials, labor, and incidentals in connection with the Work have been paid in full.

(Replace paragraph 00195.90 with the following.)

00195.90 Final Payment – Delete and replace with the following:

To receive final payment, the Contractor must do the following:

1. Notify the Engineer, in writing, that the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, and request final payment.
2. Submit to the City appropriate waivers of lien for itself and all Subcontractors.
- ~~4.~~ Furnish to the City a completed wage certification as required by ORS 279, as amended.
3. Within 15 days of these documents, the Engineer shall conduct a final inspection of the Work. If the Work, including all required inspection by City and other government agencies, and documentation has been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the City shall accept the Work and make final payment to Contractor within 30 days of the final inspection.~~—~~

Add the following subsection:

00195.92 Acceptance of Final Payment Constitutes Release — The acceptance by the Contractor of the final payment shall release the City and the Engineer as agent of the City from all claims and all liability to the Contractor for all things done or furnished in connection with the Work, and every act of the City and others relating to or arising out of the Work. No payment, however, final or otherwise, shall operate to release the Contractor from obligations under these Contract Documents, including obligations to repair or compensate City for work later determined to be defective.

Add the following subsection:

00195.93 No Waiver of Rights — Neither the inspection by the City, through the Engineer or any of its employees, nor any payment for or acceptance of any part of the Work by the City Engineer, nor any extension of time, nor any possession taken by the City, shall operate as a waiver of any provision of these Contract Documents, or any power reserved to the City, or any right to damages. A waiver of any breach of this Agreement is not a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.

End of Section

Section 00197 – Force Account Work

Comply with Section 00197 of the Standard Specifications modified as follows:

00197.80 Percentage Allowance - Delete table and percent columns and replace with the following:

<u>Subsection</u>	<u>Percent</u>
<u>00197.10 Materials</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>00197.20 Equipment</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>00197.30(b) Labor</u>	<u>20</u>
<u>00197.40 Special Services</u>	<u>15</u>

00197.90 Billings - Add the following paragraph to the end of the section:

To receive partial payments and the final payment for force account work, the Contractor shall submit in a manner approved by the Engineer, detailed and complete documented verification of the Contractor's and any of his/her Subcontractor's actual current cost involved in the force account work pursuant to the issuance of an approved Change Order. Costs shall be submitted within 30 days after the work has been performed.

No payment will be made for work billed and submitted to the City after the 30 day period has expired. No extra or additional work shall be performed by the Contractor, except in an emergency endangering life or property, unless included in a written Change Order.

End of Section

Section 00199 – Disagreements, Protests and Claims

Comply with Section 00199 of the General Conditions Standard Specifications modified as follows:

Add ~~a new Section~~ the following subsection:

00199.01 Inconsistencies and Omissions -

~~00199.01 INCONSISTENCIES AND OMISSIONS.~~

Any inconsistency, error or omission found in the Contract Documents shall be reported to the City in writing immediately and before proceeding with the work affected by the inconsistency, error or omission. Contractor shall not be liable to City for failure to discover any inconsistency, error or omission. City will clarify inconsistencies, errors or omissions in writing within a reasonable time. The City's decision shall be final. ~~Inconsistencies~~ shall be resolved according to the priority stated in the Agreement.

00199.40(b) ~~Claim Decision;~~Step 1: Region Level Review ~~– Replace the title with the following:~~

~~**00199.40(b) Exhaustions of Administrative Remedies – Step 1 is now titled**~~**40(b) Step 1 Engineer Appeal.** ~~Substitute Engineer for:~~

Throughout the subsection replace “Region-level reviewer” with “Engineer”.

00199.40(c) ~~Claim Decision;~~Step 2: Agency Level Review; ~~Exhaustions of Administrative Remedies – Step 2 is now titled – Replace the title with the following:~~

~~**00199.40(c) Step 2 City Public Works Director of Bend City Engineer Appeal.**~~
~~Substitute Public Works Director for:~~

Throughout the subsection replace “Contract Administration Engineer” with “City Engineer”.

~~00199.40(d) is amended to read:~~ **“00199.40(d) Step 3: Arbitration; Claims Review Board: Delete in its entirety and replace with the following:**

At this step, the parties agree to submit the dispute to non-binding arbitration before an arbitrator selected by mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties are unable to agree to an arbitrator, they shall ask the Presiding Judge of the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for Deschutes County to appoint an arbitrator.

~~ADD A NEW SECTION~~ Add the following subsection:

00199.60:

00199.6061 Remedies Cumulative. - The remedies provided for in the contract documents are cumulative, and in addition to other remedies available at law. Contractor agrees that, due to the health, safety and welfare issues that relate to timely and acceptable completion of the facilities to be constructed under this contract, the City may not have an adequate remedy at law in the event of a breach of this contract by Contractor, and that the City may obtain injunctive relief at the sole election of the City.

[End of Section](#)